ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 13, 2012
3:37 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Co-Chair

Senat or Thomas WAgoner, Co-Chair
Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stednan

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MGQuire
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Senator Cathy G essel
Senat or Denni s Egan
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BILL NO 192
"An Act relating to the oil and gas production tax; and
providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PRESENTATI ON BY DOR COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER: FI VE YEAR LOOK BACK ON
O L | NDUSTRY CAPI TAL EXPENDI TURES BY CATEGORY 2006-2010 & ACCESS
TO | NFORMATI ON
- HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 60
"An Act relating to aquatic farm permtting involving geoducks
and to geoduck seed transfers between certified hatcheries and
aquatic farns."

- MOVED HB 60 OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- February 13, 2012



BILL: SB 192
SHORT TI TLE: O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX RATES
SPONSOR(s): RESOURCES

02/ 08/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 08/ 12 (S) RES, FIN

02/ 10/ 12 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 10/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 12 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 13/ 12 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: HB 60

SHORT TI TLE: GEODUCK AQUATI C FARM NG SEED TRANSFER
SPONSOR(s): SEATON

01/18/11 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11
01/18/11 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/18/ 11 (H FSH, RES

02/ 15/ 11 (H FSH AT 5:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 15/ 11 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

02/ 15/ 11 (H M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 16/ 11 (H FSH RPT 2DP 3NR 1AM

02/ 16/ 11 (H DP: AUSTERMAN, THOVPSON

02/ 16/ 11 (H NR: HERRON, PRU TT, JOHNSON

02/ 16/ 11 (H AM  KAWASAKI

03/ 09/ 11 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 09/ 11 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 09/ 11 (H) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 10/ 11 (H RES RPT 5DP 3NR 1AM

03/10/11 (H DP: MUNQZ, FOSTER, DI CK, HERRON, SEATON
03/10/11 (H) NR. GARDNER, P. W LSON, FEI GE
03/ 10/ 11 (H AM  KAWASAKI

03/ 16/ 11 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/16/ 11 (H) VERSI ON: HB 60

03/18/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/18/ 11 (S) RES, FIN

02/ 13/ 12 (S) RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

BRYAN BUTCHER, Commi ssi oner

Depart nent of Revenue

State of Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 192.

BRUCE TANGEMAN, Deputy Director
Tax Divi sion

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 13, 2012



Departnent of Revenue
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 192.

DAN STI CKEL, Assistant Chi ef Econom st

Tax Di vi sion

Depart ment of Revenue

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided infornmation related to SB 192.

DONA KEPPERS, Audit Master

Tax- Production Audit G oup

Depart ment of Revenue

State of Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 192.

JOHN LARSEN, Audit Master

Tax- Production Audit G oup

Depart ment of Revenue

State of Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 192.

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 60.

PAUL FUHS

Al aska Sea Far ns

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 60.

ROGER PAI NTER, Presi dent

Al askan Shell fish Gowers Associ ation
Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 60.

JEFF HETRI CK, General Manager
Alutiiq Pride Shellfish Hatchery
Seward, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 60.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:37: 01 PM

COCHAIR JCE PASKVAN called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:37 p.m Present at the call to

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 13, 2012



order were Senators French, Stedman, Stevens, W el echowski, Co-
Chai r Wagoner and Co- Chair Paskvan.

SB 192-O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX RATES
PRESENTATI ON: _FI VE YEAR LOOK BACK ON O L | NDUSTRY CAPI TAL
EXPENDI TURES BY CATEGCORY 2006- 2010 & ACCESS TO | NFORVATI ON

3:38:34 PM

CO- CHAI R PASKVAN announced the continued consideration of SB
192. He recapped that sonme information had been provided to
Conmi ssi oner Butcher regarding slide 6 and asked if he had been
able to prepare a slide on the forward | ooking information.

BRYAN BUTCHER, Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Revenue, State of
Al aska, replied that M. Tangeman was working on that and woul d
get it to him as soon as possible. In response to the issue of
getting nore information, he had been working wth the
Departnment of Law on what is appropriate and inappropriate to
discuss in terns of the d eason decision.

3:40: 38 PM

COW SSI ONER  BUTCHER addressed slide 13, a bar chart that
conpared ELF, PPT, ACES as introduced and ACES as passed saying
the adm nistration believed the pendulum had swing too far in
terms of progressivity. ELF was not getting the state its fair
share of tax and definitely needed to be refornmed. That occurred
with PPT, and ACES as proposed would have brought in a little
bit nore, but ACES as passed brought in considerably nore. The
Governor's oil tax bill is conmparable to the ACES as proposed
scenari o.

3:42:01 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked if the numerics were out of the fall
Revenue Sources Book that had the price of oil at $109.47 and
the vol une expectations at 555 barrels a day (bb/d) and then had
expectations out the follow ng years to 2016.

COW SS|I ONER BUTCHER answered that was correct.
SENATOR STEDMAN said he assuned the CAPEX and credits obtained
with them are all derived from the forward | ooking information

subnmitted to the departnent.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER answer ed yes.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- February 13, 2012



SENATOR STEDVAN said he assuned they would get updated charts
with 2013 and forward in the sane graphical presentation,
because there was a difference in the verbal presentation versus
t he docunents in the Revenue Sources Book.

3:43: 53 PM
COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER asked if he was referring to the updated
expendi ture information.

SENATOR STEDVAN said he was referring to Friday's testinony from
the comm ssioner about expecting CAPEX to decline, yet the
Revenue Sources Book says it's expected to increase to al nost
$3,900,000 in FY15. You can't say CAPEX is going down on one
hand and then show docunents with it going up.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER sai d he was preparing that request, but the
point he was trying to make is that the forecast is for CAPEX to
go up, but the departnent's forecasts have been overly
optimstic for the past years.

3:45: 32 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN said if there has been a substantial deviation
from expectations they need to flesh it out and the Finance
Comm ttee needs to know that in the appropriations cycle.

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER agr eed.

3:46: 34 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWMSKI agreed that information would be hel pful
ask well as the reasoning behind why it is off, especially if it
is lower. He addressed the current chart and asked why the
adm ni stration proposed lowering oil taxes to level of ACES as
proposed because industry had testified in opposition to both
PPT and ACES as proposed. Wiat nmakes himthink that the industry
will significantly increase their investnent now when past
testinmony indicates they thought the tax was too hi gh?

3:47:57 PM

COWMM SSI ONER BUTCHER answered this is only one piece of the bill
that was introduced and secondly, after rolling out the bill,
they talked to the conpanies again and nost thought |owering
taxes would make a material difference and result in nore
i nvestment in Al aska.

3:48: 45 PM

BRUCE TANGEMAN, Deputy Director, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue, State of Al aska, added that trying to apply testinony

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 13, 2012



from several years back to today's discussion was a little
dangerous because the oil price is the overriding part of the
di scussi on. Back then they were | ooking at $80 oil, tops.

3:49: 53 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN stated the record would not match what he just
said and he asserted that legislators had spent quite a bit of
time working on ACES in the high priced environnent.

3:50:40 PM

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER added that there is a difference between
havi ng hypot heti cal discussions about high oil prices and naking
capital decisions in a high oil price environnent.

MR. TANGEMAN added that it's nore inportant to see what the
effect of the high oil pricing has been el sewhere, because "t hat
is what is driving the boomin our conpetition.”

3:51:46 PM

SENATOR FRENCH asked in the departnent's efforts to addressed
conpetitiveness if he had seen any increase in applications for
royalty relief that is on the books to help nake non-economc
devel opnents econonic. Wiy hadn't they seen nore?

3:52:42 PM

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER answered that royalty relief can be used

but changing the tax structure would nake a mnuch bigger
difference in potentially bringing investnments 1in. Royalty
relief can only occur when soneone already has a |ease or has
explored and can lay everything out to the departnent with an
expl anation of what needs to happen to nake sonething economnc

It has been utilized only a fewtinmes in the state's history.

3:54:12 PM

MR. TANGEMAN added that he believed that royalty directly
affects the anobunt of noney that is going into the Permanent
Fund and if there was a choice he would rather | ook at the tax's
effect on state coffers.

SENATOR FRENCH said he was also sensitive about the Permanent
Fund and asked if some proof should be offered that a tax break
would result in nore production than is already Dbeing
contenplated. He didn't think the conpanies would tell them
whi ch projects are being held back right now by ACES or projects
they will go forward with if they get a tax reduction, because
royalty relief seens to be the place to test their desire to
reduce the state take through the use of real evidence. No

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 13, 2012



increase in those applications signaled to him the lay of the
econom ¢ | and.

3:55: 57 PM

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked questions about the details of
i ndustry/state split of PTV on a FY13 production tax estimate
chart and M. Tangeman followed w th answers.

SENATOR STEDMAN commented that there are three players at the
table: the sovereign State of Al aska, industry, and the federa
governnent. He said that whatever noney is left over has to be
split between the federal government and industry at sonething
substantially |l ess than the 35 percent federal rate.

3:58: 24 PM
MR. TANGEMAN said this was a chart of production tax only; there
is also property tax and corporate incone tax.

CO- CHAI R PASKVAN said he understood that but he was continuing
to have troubl e understanding the chart.

3:59: 02 PM

SENATOR WELECHOWNSKI clarified that |last year ConocoPhillips
made roughly $2 billion, BP made roughly the sane and no one
knows what Exxon nade, but probably the sanme as a one-third
owner. He said he had calculated profits of $6 billion for just
| ast year and over $30 billion since ACES had passed.

3:59: 50 PM

MR. TANGEMAN said he wanted to invite M. Stickel, the
departnent's assistant chief economst, to help set them
straight.

DAN STI CKEL, Assistant Chief Econom st, Tax D vision, Departnent
of Revenue, State of Al aska, said when you are looking at the
share of the total production tax value remaining to producers,
it's not as sinple as taking production tax value (PTV) and
subtracting out the production tax liability. Incone statenents
in Appendix D of the Revenue Sources Book show the PTV after
royalty. To derive the producer take out of that nunber, you
have to subtract the production tax as well as state corporate
income taxes and state property taxes (for the total state
share) and federal corporate inconme taxes. It's conplex for both
the industry and the state.

MR. STICKEL explained that this <chart only addressed the
significant changes from ELF to PPT to ACES.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- February 13, 2012



CO CHAI R PASKVAN remarked that part of the conplexity in the
FY13 chart on the state's $4.7 billion is that figure includes
at least $400 mllion that the state is paying out in credits.

MR STI CKEL answered that was correct.

4:02: 29 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN, addressing slide 10, said one of the points
they were trying to get to last Friday is that an analysis of
CAPEX on drilling and G&G was perfornmed based upon $27 and if
you apply FY13 hypotheticals with the nost realistically current
information that it cones out to |l ess than $21.

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER said he wwuld have to look at those
nunbers.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN sai d he wel coned the anal ysi s.

SENATOR STEDVAN said it would be beneficial to convert the
nunbers to dollars through-put for the entire year rather than
usi ng per barrel nunbers.

4:04:51 PM
MR. TANGEMAN said absolutely and that they were trying to nake
t he conpl ex sinple enough to understand.

4. 05: 29 PM

MR. TANGEMAN said slide 14 was the "Marginal Governnent Take"
under the current tax system (an additional dollar as the price
of a barrel of oil goes up). At ANS prices over $78, nargina
government take was over 75 percent. That also neans that
government take is at |east 75 percent of each additional profit
a conmpany can produce.

4:06: 17 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked questions about interpreting the slide and
M. Tangeman and M. Stickel followed up with explanations.

4: 08: 50 PM
CO- CHAI R PASKVAN said he read the chart to be a PTV chart.

COM SSI ONER BUTCHER agreed and said there is always a l|lot of
confusion on determning the difference between PTV and the
price of oil.

4:10: 24 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 13, 2012



SENATOR STEDMAN said they had talked a |ot about the margina
government take issue, but little on the effective tax rate.
When do you use margi nal and when do you use effective?

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER answered that effective tax is what is
paid. Marginal is not as inportant, but it is tal ked about when
conpani es speak specifically about progressivity at the high
cost of oil.

4:11:50 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN said the average guy on the street doesn't
understand marginal rate, particularly when it is delivered as
the tax inposed by the state on the industry and that he wanted
to see information on the effective rate. It needs nore clarity,
because it looks like a 90 percent effective tax rate and it's
not .

4:12:35 PM
COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER agr eed.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN agreed that they needed the effective tax rate
presentation and to use FY13 nunbers.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER agreed that was a reasonable point, but
going to FY13 becones nore of a projection than using actual
nunbers from previ ous years.

4:14: 00 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI said he recalled at $100 a barrel the
effective tax rate was around 28 percent. He asked if having a
hi gher marginal tax rate is a good policy call in the context of
Norway that spikes the tax rate to 78 percent for the first
dollar of profit. Al aska chose to have a lower tax rate at | ower
dollars and stair-stepped it up as profits went up (the oil
conpani es nmade nore and the state nade nore).

He explained that the oil conpanies were in harvest nobde and
maki ng huge anounts of noney and investing it elsewhere. The
concept behind the high marginal tax rate was to say if you
reinvest in the State of Alaska we're going to give you what
anounts to a very large tax break. The effective tax rate stil
remains at 28 percent at $100 a barrel, but the philosophy
behind the marginal tax rate is that it would encourage
reinvestnment in the state. And record reinvestnent |evels have
been seen every single year since ACES had passed. |Is there any
merit to having a higher marginal tax rate?

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 13, 2012



4:15:29 PM

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER answered that it makes sense to have the
state share in a higher percentage of profits at high oil prices
(progressivity), but the governor thinks the current take is too
hi gh.

4:16: 06 PM

MR. STICKEL said slide 15 showed producer's share of profit oil
and the upper end of it being taken away as the price goes up
and that is what the problemis.

4:17: 05 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN recapped that before PPT, progressivity didn't
exi st and the argunent was the state should be happy because its
dollars were going up when the price advanced. Sone in the
| egi sl ature weren't happy because the state's percent of the pie
was goi ng down. Now the departnment was showi ng the reverse where
the state's percent was going up. So he could understand
i ndustry's concern, but industry wasn't concerned when the state
was. He recalled that Governor  Mirkowski didn't support
progressivity but he still signed the bill.

He then asked for the charts to synchronize ANS Wst Coast in
dollars because the next side goes to PTV, which deletes
royalties and expenditures distorting the picture. It would be
nice if the X axes lined up.

4:19: 01 PM
COWMM SSI ONER BUTCHER agr eed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said the state would do better under ELF if
oil was under $50 a barrel. ACES originally had a m ninum fl oor,
but the oil conpanies didn't like that. The bargain was to take
out the state's protection at the low end, but in return the
stated wanted to get nore at the high end. They have no idea if
oi | will stay this high ($118-120  Dbarrel). Since the
comi ssioner said progressivity would becorme punitive to the oil
i ndustry at sone point, what point was that?

4:20: 20 PM

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER answered there was no specific spot;
conpanies are different and have different views. This slide
just illustrated the size of the state's take as the price of
oi | increases.

CO- CHAIR PASKVAN said it's also inportant to renenber that
what ever the nunbers may be, Al aska has to approach this probl em

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- February 13, 2012



wearing two different hats, as the resource owner and as a
taxing jurisdiction.

4:22:17 PM

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER said he was correct, but when a conpany is
| ooking at an economc nodel for $115 a barrel and 72 percent
going to the federal and state governnents, that would
definitely be factored in.

4:23:09 PM

MR, STICKEL said slide 16 |looks at the profits in dollars
i nstead of percentages like on the previous slide and it's a way
to see the small growh the producer would realize at higher
prices.

CO- CHAI R PASKVAN asked if it includes credit deductions.

MR. TANGEMAN replied that it assumed that 20 percent of capita
expenditures are available for credit.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said another way to phrase that is there is a
40 percent exploration credit and asked if the 20 percent is
only for operators with production or can the credit be turned
into the state for cash

MR. TANGEMAN replied this only looks at the 20 percent CAPEX
credit; it doesn't make a distinction between refunding credits
versus filing against a tax liability.

4:25: 09 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said he has heard the adm nistration and
others say when ACES was witten, the price of oil was $80 a
barrel and no one expected these high prices, which inplies that
others believed ACES works at certain |levels, but not at higher
| evel s. At what point is ACES broke? At what point is the share
no | onger fair?

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER answered that he did not know there was an
actual dollar amount, but it's nore | opsided at high prices.

4:26:19 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said people are asking themto fix the tax
systemand that is a critical question to answer.

MR. TANGEMAN agreed and said they need to hear from industry
about it.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- February 13, 2012



4:27:08 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN added that he could infer a nunber of things
from that st at enent the | east of which is that t he
adm ni stration has nothing to say on where the systemis broke.

MR. TANGEMAN said he did not agree.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said HB 110, proposing to roll back oil
taxes, isn't the oil conpanies' bill; it's the admnistration's.
He assuned when they wote it that they had sonme inclination
that the tax system was broken at sonme point, and now they are
sayi ng they don't know where it's broken.

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER answered that he didn't know of an exact
dol | ar anount .

4:28:20 PM
MR. TANGEMAN responded, since he referred to HB 110, the two
critical parts of that bill were putting a cap in place and

putting the brackets in place, the brackets making it easier and
nore understandable to calculate tax and based it on the federal
system and it is still a higher tax than anywhere else in North
Aneri ca.

4:29:11 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said the chart showi ng production tax values is
confusing for the public. They need to be consistent and use the
recent price range of around $150 and fix it there before going
north of it. He pointed out the inplied 35 percent federal tax
rate and remarked, "lI'd like to know the accountants that work
for BP, Conoco or Exxon where they pay 35 percent and |I'Il show
you the next accountant that is going to get term nated."

4:31: 36 PM

MR. TANGEMAN agreed and added that they are getting into the
conmplexities of the current tax system As the prices goes from
$35 to $235, the only segnment realizing the upside is the state;
"the producers are nore or less flat in conparison.” The chart
illustrates how the split | ooks between the three entities.

4:32:23 PM
SENATOR STEDMAN said first they should agree that the industry
does not pay a 35 percent rate. ConocoPhillips publishes its

information and they should get a ballpark figure from that of
where their conpetitors are. H's other point was that the
production tax value is nore conplex than the marginal and
effective tax rates and it's confusing to the public. It needs

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- February 13, 2012



to be "boiled down" so that Alaskans who own the oil can
understand it.

4:34: 00 PM

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER said he agreed and they were very wlling
to do that. Here they were trying to provide a snapshot that
they would be lucky to get through in two hearings hitting on a
bunch of topics. They would be here for weeks if they dug into
the details.

SENATOR STEDMAN sai d he knew about the tineframe, but they were
dealing with billions of dollars and the future of the state
and he personally wanted the details.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said he agreed with Senator Stednan. The whol e
purpose of the hearing starting last Friday was asking the
Department of Revenue to define the problem One of their
concerns is starting to advance solutions when they don't know
what the problemis

4:35:46 PM

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said he appreciated that, but they were
trying in a fairly small nunber of slides in a snmall anount of
time to do that. They would be "excited" to go into detail, but
it's just not part of this presentation.

4:36: 20 PM

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER said they used Pedro van Meurs Petro Cash
nodel in conparing Al aska governnment take and life cycles to its
international peers in fields over 50 mllion barrels. It was a
country-by-country snap shot rather than state by state.

4:37:13 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if he thought Norway had a healthy |evel of
i ndustry investnent.

COWMM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied he was not an expert on Norway, but
t here seens to be.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said Norway has a 78 percent tax on the
first dollar of profit. He asked if he thought we had to just
|l ook at the governnent take or are there other |evers they
shoul d be pul l'ing.

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER answered obviously there are differences;
Norway is country and Alaska is a state; Norway has a state-

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- February 13, 2012



owned oil conpany; Norway controls their permts; there are a
ot of differences. Permtting is a huge issue as well.

4:38:56 PM

SENATOR STEDVMAN said they spent quite a bit of tinme last go-
round | ooking at Norway as a conparative and one of the things
that was pointed out is that their marginal tax rate is flat
while ours is robust. He asked the departnent to come back with
an effective and margi nal tax rate conpari son between the two.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said they would be happy to do that, but
woul d have to discuss the apples and oranges differences those
conpari sons woul d expose.

SENATOR STEDMAN said he was trying to help his argunment and said
Norway has a flat marginal rate and that is probably one of the
bi ggest issues on the table.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER agreed to prepare the conparison

4:40: 39 PM

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER said he used the Petro Cash nodel again
focusing on the largest jurisdictions of oil producers in North
America: North Dakota, California, Texas, Al berta, lahoma, OCS
in federal waters, in Alaska waters and ACES in Al aska.
Government take was a percent of divisible incone.

SENATOR STEDVAN asked himto rerun the slide with a conparative
of the exporting basins that was presented to the Finance
Comm ttee a couple of hours ago by Dr. van Meurs.

4:41.42 PM

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER sai d he woul d be happy to do that; he noted
that Al aska's peers shifted fromwhat they were in 1997 to North
America in 2012,

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said slide 18 tal ks about divisible incone and
that seens to be PTV, but North Dakota, for exanple, has a
royalty and a gross production tax system How do you say it is
divisible income if they are a gross system and we are partially
a net systenf

MR. TANGEMAN responded that this was nodeled off of Dr. van

Meurs' Petro Cash nodel and they could get him sone details on
how t he nodel handl ed t hem

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- February 13, 2012



CO CHAIR PASKVAN said in conparing Alaska to Texas and North
Dakota it should conpare a percent of gross, because their
systens are gross.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER agr eed.

4:43. 28 PM
SENATOR STEDMAN said he nmeant total governnent take rather than
di vi si bl e i ncone.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said this slide showed that the government
take is a percentage of divisible incone and had a total
government take over the |ife of the project.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked M. Brena and M. Richards |ast week
if they had some suggestions other than tax changes, |Iike
vertical integration issues, |lack of transparency and facilities
access issues, tariff, and pipeline bottleneck issues. Do those
have any nerit?

COWMM SSI ONER BUTCHER asked if he wanted to be nore specific.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he would get a list and would be
interested in the departnent's opinion.

COWMM SSI ONER BUTCHER agreed to help himw th that.

4. 45: 32 PM

COWMM SSI ONER BUTCHER started hi s five year | ook- back
presentation and he brought Dona Keppers forward, saying she is
one the three audit masters who oversaw the five-year | ook-back
project. It came about primarily as a result of last year's
di scussions about tax credits and capital expenditures. The
Department of Law determ ned that under current regul ations DOR
could ask industry for nore of a breakdown in spending and that
began the nonth after the legislative session ended. Sone of the
i ssues surfacing in their workshops with conpanies were that al
had different ways of putting their nunbers together, so two
pi eces were developed. First they asked conpanies to do a five-
year |ook-back and break out their capital expenditures into
five general categories. The second piece was doing a | ook-
forwmard with a lot nore detailed categories wth not just
capi tal expenditures but operating expenditures as well.

4:48: 43 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked him to junp forward to page 5 because
some of it is self-explanatory.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- February 13, 2012



COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said he was happy to do that. He said they
spent a lot of tinme in-house discussing what categories should
be used and conducted four workshops (one of which Senator
Paskvan sat in on) with industry averaging about 15 conpanies
per workshop. Industry was responsive and worked with them very
well in trying to conpile this information and hel ped establish
the expenditure categories for both the |ook-back and the
forward reporting.

4:49: 50 PM

COWMWM SSI ONER BUTCHER said the five-year |ook back was for 2006
to 2010. It doesn't go to 2011 because the true ups for 2010
come in then. The first of the five basic categories was
geol ogi cal and geophysical work (G&G and includes work and/or
costs associated with the performance or acquisition of seismc

and/ or geol ogi cal and geophysical data. Exploration drilling was
a different category that included drilling and exploration
wells, an appraisal well that is post-discovery and prior to
devel opment and included side tracks on the discovery well, and
apprai sal costs including coring and testing discovery wells.
The developnment drilling included costs associated with well
drilling, conpletions, planned nulti-laterals of devel opnent
well's including costs upstream and all costs related to well
work overs and conpletions. Facilities included well tie-in

costs, expansions of existing facilities such as increasing oil,
gas or water handling increases to capacity, debottlenecking or

processing facilities' inprovenents to reliability or reduced
operational costs, production control system upgrades, |IT,
communi cati ons equi pnment, control systens, canp sites, nedical
facilities, laboratories, warehouses and any facilities that
would fall generally into that category. The fifth category was
a catch-all for other capital expenditures which include
significant capital equipnment, health, safety, environnment and
other non-drilling related costs that weren't captured in the

previ ous four categories.

4:52:26 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked him to point out what was available for
the 20 percent capital credits with the imediate wite off as
he goes forward.

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER replied that he didn't have that Kkind of
detail yet, but he would see what could be done. He added that
t he cat egori zed capi tal expendi ture dat a represents
approximately 90 percent of the <costs related to credit

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- February 13, 2012



applications that the departnment has seen. He then passed the
presentation over to Ms. Keppers.

4:53: 17 PM

DONA  KEPPERS, Audi t Mast er, Tax- Production Audit G oup,
Department of Revenue, State of Alaska, said the categorized
capital expenditure data represents 90 percent of the costs
related to qualified capital expenditures. That is inportant
because it means a conpany can have costs greater than those
reported for credit purposes, because they may have costs that
t hey have chosen not to apply for a credit on.

She said slide 9 showed that 2006 includes nine nonths of PPT
and indicated that the exenptions for the five-year period
totaled $9.3 billion. The two |largest categories are facilities
and devel opnent. She said the overall trend was for increased
spending probably in maintaining production (as there are no
maj or i ncreases or decreases in any one category).

IVS. KEPPERS said developnent drilling and facilities had
increases in 2007 and 2008 and a decline in 2009 (the first year
that ACES would have possibly had sone effect on budgets and
activities). The increase in spending in both devel opnent wells
and facilities in 2010 was greater than in years prior to 2009.
The figures provided no significant indication of ACES
i nfluences but maybe were a reflection of the credit program and
nore targeted spending for credits qualifying for spend.

4:55:29 PM
M5. KEPPERS said a broader perspective for total conpanies
devel opnent drilling ($4.2 billion) could be viewed as being

relatively flat or generally denonstrated no dramatic increase
during the four-year period. The other $4.2 billion for
facilities spend mrrored that of developnent and could be
interpreted as sinply supporting existing production from
existing fields. The slight fluctuation in total expenditures
for these categories could also be attributed to annual cost
increases for |abor or services, materials, and not necessarily
reflective of an increase in overall devel opnent activity.

4:56: 21 PM
CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked if figures from 2009 were possibly
consistent with the world and U.S. economn ¢ downturn.

MS. KEPPERS answered that all of that had an inpact on costs

She said that slide 10, GG and drilling costs, indicated
i ncreases from 2007 to 2008 and a decline in 2008 to 2009 and

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- February 13, 2012



then increasing from 2009 to 2010. She said the multi-year
increases were not reflected in developnent drilling and after
the increase in 2007, spending stays fairly level for the
remai nder of the reporting period. This agrees with statenents
made by sonme conpanies that they had |evel spend to devel op
existing fields and are not pursuing new finds or devel opnent of
new fi el ds.

4:57:48 PM

M5. KEPPERS said slide 11 showed facilities for all conpanies,
and sone of the costs were for new devel opnent; others were for
repl acenent of aging facilities.

4:58: 33 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked for sone exanples of CAPEX and OPEX
for facilities.

JOHN  LARSEN, Audi t Mast er, Tax-Production  Audit G oup,
Department of Revenue, responded that CAPEX would have a | onger
type life that would be related to buildings and vessels for
handling the production; the OPEX is by and large |abor and
material s.

CO- CHAI R PASKVAN r ecogni zed Senator Egan in the audience.

4:59: 53 PM

M5. KEPPERS said on slide 12 that costs between independents and
majors were difficult to split out because for 2008, 2009 and
2010 the aggregation factor of three or nore conpanies for
confidentiality couldn't be nmet. So the costs got |unped
together by year for the |ook back. The independents had a
total CAPEX of $2.6 billion. Capital expenditures increased in
2008 through 2010 by approxinmately 67 percent for the
i ndependents, which my be due to increased activity in the
smal | er producing fields.

5: 00: 50 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked for a rough idea of a figure for
rei mbursenents the state would be nmaking on the $805 million in
credits.

M5. KEPPERS replied they would have to work with M. Dees to get
t hose detail s.

COW SSI ONER BUTCHER sai d they woul d do that.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 13, 2012



CO CHAI R PASKVAN said it would be interesting to have it for the
maj ors as well.

MS. KEPPERS said they could do that.

5:02:11 PM

M5. KEPPERS said slide 13 was simlar with total CAPEX for the
maj or conpani es that anounted to $6.7 billion. The increase for
them for the sane tine period of 2008 to 2010 was approximately
5 percent. The data indicated no major increases overall in
spending totals, especially in the nost recent three years.

SENATOR STEDVAN asked when the request goes out for expectations
in FY13-16 if could they break data down into the independents
and the mpjors and just add them to the sane charts so they
don't have to flip back and forth

MS. KEPPERS and conmi ssioner agreed to do that.

5:03: 24 PM

COWM SSI ONER BUTCHER went to the conclusions on slide 14 and
said they would be having further workshops and getting nore
details and everyone was invited. They are open to the public.
He said capital expenditures from 2007 to 2010 increased from

just under $2 billion to about $2.4 billion; explorers seened to
spend nost of their noney on drilling wells and G&G Conpani es
in the devel opnment stage spent noney on devel opnent drilling and

facilities; conpanies in transition spent noney in multiple
areas dependi ng on what stage they were in; and conpanies in the
mat ure production phase spent noney on naintenance and upgrade
of facilities and devel opnent wells. Mre players are active in
the field, as well.

5:04: 56 PM

COM SSI ONER BUTCHER said they were working on the proposed
annual cost supplenental information report and wll have one
nore year of |ook-back and starting with cal endar year 2012 they
will be able to use nore detailed categories. He said they have
di scussed these issues wth industry and had given them a
general breakdown of different categories and definitions and a
picture of where they are going with it. He hoped for a "fairly
seanl ess nove" so they can give the legislature nore detail on
expenditures with each additional year.

5:05: 48 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN thanked the presenters and held SB 192 in
conmittee.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- February 13, 2012



CO CHAI R PASKVAN transferred the gavel to Co-Chair \Wagoner.

HB 60- GEODUCK AQUATI C FARM NG SEED TRANSFER

5:06: 12 PM
CO- CHAI R WAGONER announced the consi derati on of HB 60.

5:06: 46 PM
CO- CHAl R WAGONER asked for a notion

5:06: 55 PM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN moved to bring HB 60, version \A before the
commttee for purposes of discussion.

CO CHAI R WAGONER obj ected for purposes of discussion

5:07: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  PAUL  SEATON, sponsor of HB 60, said he
appreciated the tinely effort the commttee was taking on this
bill. He said it works on trying to pronote econom c devel opnent
around the coast of Alaska where it is difficult to establish
new econom ¢ bases, especially ones that won't conflict in time
with salnon and herring fishing. He said HB 60 allows for sub-
tidal farmng of geoduck clans. They average about 2.5 |bs. and
are about 7 inches long. They are filter feeders and are
generally two to three feet down in one place their entire life.
Their habitat has worns and tunicates, a snall sessile aninal
(naturally i nmobile) t hat aren't used conmmercially for
subsi stence, and nothing about geoducks has been found to
inhibit their nunbers.

H's said his plan is necessary because the ADF&G has an inform
policy of not allow ng geoducks to go to the single certified
hatchery in the state in Seward for raising and being
distributed to farns anywhere other than where they are already
occurring (only in Southeast). The recent geoduck conflict has
been because wild stocks are harvested by divers and peopl e want
to put farms in good habitat which is where there is already a
wild stock.

He explained however, that if the species would proliferate it
woul d be a great bonus for Al aska, because right now fishernen
are getting $21 Ib. for them It is good for comunities around
the coast because geoducks, unlike oysters or nuscles that have
to be tended two or three tinmes every sunmer, are put in the
sediment with a small plastic piece of pipe with a net on the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- February 13, 2012



top to keep out predators, two years |later those are taken off,
and in about seven years you are in harvest node w thout doing
anyt hi ng el se.

5:11:13 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON began his video presentation at 5:11 and
that ran until 5:14 p.m

5:14:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said HB 60 sinply says you can't use the
absence of geoducks in an area to deny a plan permt. It would
be for all areas around the @ulf of Al aska, Kodiak, Yakutat,
Chignik and other areas out Wst, but not including Kachenak
Bay, which is designated a critical habitat and doesn't allow
bott om f ar m ng.

5:15:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said HB 60 Ilimts farns to sub-tidal
areas, so there is no interference with subsistence or sport
fisheries. This is a clean and renewable fishery; it depends on
cl ean water so people will nake sure no pollution cones in.

He said the state has "larval drift zones" to make sure if you
are enhancing a clam species you have to take the stock from
that sanme area, raise the seed and then replant from that sane
stock so you don't get genetic crosses. And HB 60 is
specifically for taking clam seed to an area where there are no
natural stocks in the first place to alleviate that worry.

5:16: 44 PM
CO CHAI R WAGONER asked what the nmain predator for geoducks is as
they are being raised.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answered when they are juveniles it's the
star fish.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how the red tide would affect geoducks.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answered that geoducks are filter feeders
and would be affected by a red tide bloom This bill does not
exenpt any farm from all of the health and safety criteria that
all Mari culture farnms nust deal with. So the geoducks have to
be tested before they are sold.

5:17:59 PM

SENATOR STEVENS asked if there are shellfish hatcheries ready to
supply the needs of this new industry.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- February 13, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied the problem with having the only
shellfish hatchery in the state is that its business plan was
based on sale of seeds so it could be self-sustaining. Geoduck
seed is nmuch nore valuable than oyster seed and w thout being
able to distribute to nore farnms than just in Southeastern
Al aska that business plan has not been realized. This bill
shoul d make the shellfish hatchery self-sustaining.

5:18: 35 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOABKI recall ed concerns from ADF&G and asked if
t hey had been resol ved.

5:18: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answered yes, and the departnent is now
neutral. They were concerned about the larval drift zones in
terms of contam nation and there is no question of that here.

5:19: 31 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if he heard any opposition to the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answered not since ADF&G cane out with its
concern.

5:19:47 PM
CO CHAI R WAGONER opened t he public hearing.

5:20: 56 PM

PAUL FUHS, Al aska Sea Farns, said he supported HB 60 and that
Al aska Sea Farnms is the biggest operation grow ng geoducks in
Sout heast. He said if they pass this bill, it won't be a wasted
effort. They would go immediately to a research permit and get
some geoducks in the ground and see how they grow, nortalities
and things |like that. Geoducks are growing in Resurrection Bay
right now He said "the nmarket has just gone off the deep end
for geoducks" and that $21 |Ib. to fisherman nakes it the highest
price fish in Alaska. It takes seven or eight years to grow
them but once you get themin the ground that is all you need
to do. It's really good for rural Al aska, but what makes it so
sinple is the logistics: the transportation, the hatchery, the
PSP testing is all there and that is what Southeast fights all
the time. So it could be even nore successful in Southcentral.

5:21:53 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked how a person starts a geoduck farm

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- February 13, 2012



MR. FUHS explained that you get a |lease fromthe State of Al aska
and from that you get exclusive use of the clanms on your site.
They don't worry about people comng and taking them because
they are not a big item on nost people's nmenu. But you have to
prove that the water is clean and take over a year's worth of
wat er sanples; you can't be anywhere near a discharge line; you
have to stake it off; you have to get a permt to transfer the
seed from the hatchery, but that's it. The |ease lasts for 10
years and is renewabl e. They have had sone of these farns for 10
years and are just beginning to sell their first adult geoducks.

5:23: 04 PM
CO CHAI R WAGONER asked about nuch a first-year geoduck wei ghs.

MR. FUHS replied about two pounds after seven or eight years.

5:23:46 PM

ROGER PAI NTER, President, Al askan Shellfish Gowers Association
said they supported HB 60. He said the geoduck market is strong
and seens to be getting strong all the tinme. There are nmgjor
geoduck aquaculture operations in Puget Sound that are doing

very well, and two have had sone interest in investnents in
Sout hcentral. And while he thinks they should be successful,
they won't really know until the animals are put in the ground.

They have been unsuccessful to this point in convincing ADF&G to
do an experinental approach.

5:25: 45 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if soneone for ADF&G was on |ine.

COCHAIR WAGONER said no, just soneone from the shellfish
hat chery.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it was run by the state.
CO CHAI R WAGONER sai d soneone indicated yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked M. Hetrick (on line) if he saw any
problens to the ecosystemw th this, a disease or anyt hing.

JEFF HETRI CK, General Manager, Alutiiq Pride Shellfish Hatchery,
Sewar d, Al aska, answered no. They are currently using
Resurrection Bay water that is filtered prior to comng into the
hatchery and then they chlorinate the effluent prior to going
back into the bay. So there should be no disease concerns. He
said there are other clam populations, but sub-tidally they

SENATE RES COW TTEE -23- February 13, 2012



don't expect any conpetition between geoduck clanms and anyt hing
el se.

5:26:50 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how nuch acreage they anticipate
| easi ng and how many geoducks they will allow per acre.

MR. HETRI CK answered initially a fisheries resource permt would
just be a small plot to prove the concept and identify the sites
that would be applicable. The mninmum size for a comrercially
viable farm for DNR and ADF&G is two acres, but he didn't know
exactly how nany geoducks get planted per acre - but hundreds of
t housands.

SENATOR W ELECHOAMSKI asked if there is spacing between the
acr eage.

MR. HETRI CK answered that the acreage is fee-based, so you don't
want to take nore space than you actually need. But typically,
farms are contiguous; acreage would be side by side. These sites
require specific habitat and you wouldn't be taking steep rocky
sl opes, for instance; you'd look for gentle sandy bottons or
light gravel, which are "mnimzed." They are working with the
Sea Life Center and sone l|ocal dive shops to identify sone
| ocations for the first proof of concept programin Resurrection
Bay. Perhaps others would step forward with other sites.

5:28:28 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked how geoducks are processed, since they are
of f the road system

5:29: 04 PM

MR. FUHS replied that they are taken from renote |ocations now
and delivered by the dock, but they are sold live. So as soon as
they hit the dock they go into "chill node" and are flown out
i nmedi ately. They experinented with processing some of them but
the market didn't want that. They wanted |ive geoduck.

5:29:39 PM

SENATOR STEVENS asked if geoducks can survive for a period of
time.

MR. FUHS answered yes; they found that the farns benefit the
smal ler airlines and ships, fuel, divers, and all the ancillary
services that go around it.

5:30:18 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- February 13, 2012



CO CHAIR WAGONER asked if sone of the Native corporations want
to get into the geoduck industry; Port G aham would probably be
a perfect place because it doesn't get a big surge and is
shallow. Can they be transported to Homer on a boat and then be
put on the airplane in Honmer?

MR. FUHS answered yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI asked if geoducks are handpi cked by SCUBA
(sel f-contai ned underwat er breathi ng apparatus) divers.

MR. FUHS replied yes; they are dug in so hard that the diver
puts a water jet down in the nud and it loosens it up a little
bit to where the geoduck can be westled out. It's tough work in
about 15-40 feet of water, but a diver can harvest about 1,000
ani mal s a day.

CO CHAI R WAGONER asked if they use hookah gear.
MR. FUHS replied yes, sonetines hardhat, sonetines SCUBA.

CO-CHAIR WAGONER closed public testinony and renoved his
obj ection. He asked for a notion to nove HB 60 out of conmittee
wi th individual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s).

5:31: 57 PM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN said so noved. There were no objections and HB
60 noved fromthe Senate Resources Standing Commttee.

5:32: 08 PM

COCHAIR WAGONER adjourned the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting at 5:32 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -25- February 13, 2012



